Institut Européen des Jardins & Paysages

Inventory of Gardens and Designed Landscapes of England

Inventory of Great Britain

TATTON PARK

Auteur(s) : Historic England https://historicengland.org.uk/

Pdle Document numérique — MRSH — université de Caen Normandie — 22/07/2024



Inventory of Gardens and Designed Landscapes of England

Inventory of Great Britain

TATTON PARK
Name: TATTON PARK
District: Cheshire East (Unitary Authority)
Parish: Knutsford
District: Cheshire East (Unitary Authority)
Parish: Mere
District: Cheshire East (Unitary Authority)
Parish: Mobberley
District: Cheshire East (Unitary Authority)
Parish: Rostherne
District: Cheshire East (Unitary Authority)
Parish: Tatton

|abel.localisation:  Latitude: 53.326293
Longitude: -2.3716284
National Grid Reference: SJ 75345 81106
Map: Download afull scale map (PDF)

label.overview:  Heritage Category: Park and Garden
Grade: I1*
List Entry Number: 1000501
Datefirst listed: 10-Jun-1985

Details

C18 and later gardens and an extensive landscape park associated with a country house; designers who worked here included
Humphry Repton, John Webb, Lewis Wyatt and Joseph Paxton.

CHRONOLOGY OF HISTORIC DEVELOPMENT

In 1598 Tatton was bought by Sir Thomas Egerton, Lord Chancellor of England, created Viscount Brackley by James|. His
grandson Thomas, the second Earl of Bridgewater, settled Tatton on his third son Thomas, although not until the time of
Thomas's son John Egerton (1679-1724) did the family reside here, in anew house built in the first quarter of the C18. John's
son and heir died in 1738, leaving the family fortunes much depleted. In 1758 however the enormous fortune of Samuel Hill,
the brother of John Egerton's wife Elizabeth, passed to Samuel (d 1780), their second son. It was that legacy which provided
the wherewithal for the later C18 rebuilding of Tatton. Most of the work was done for William Egerton (d 1806) and his
son Wilbraham (d 1856). In 1791 Humphry Repton (1752-1818) advised on landscaping the park. Wilbraham Egerton was
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succeeded by his son William (d 1883); he, like his father and Samuel Egerton, served as MP, and in 1859 was created Baron
Egerton of Tatton. His heir was his son Wilbraham, the second Baron, on whose death in 1909 Tatton passed to his younger
brother Alan de Tatton Egerton (d 1920), under whom the Japanese garden was created. On the death of his son Maurice, the
fourth Baron, the Barony of Egerton became extinct and in 1958 Tatton passed to the National Trust. It is now (1997) financed
and managed by Cheshire County Council on behalf of the National Trust.

DESCRIPTION

LOCATION, AREA, BOUNDARIES, LANDFORM, SETTING Tatton Hall lies 3km north of Knutsford, and the westernmost
point of the park touches on the A50 from Knutsford to Altrincham and Manchester. To the south of this a section of the
west park boundary, which here iswalled, follows Mereheath Lane, which runs parallel with the A50. The long north-western
boundary of the park follows Ashley Road, the minor road from the A50 to Ashley. For the most part the east boundary of the
park follows alinejust east of the Birkin Brook. The area here registered is ¢ 1000ha.

ENTRANCES AND APPROACHES The main approach to the Hall in the late C20 is from the north, via the tree-lined
Rostherne Drive (planted ¢ 1883) which leadsto car parks north-west of the Hall. Rostherne Lodge (listed gradell), at the north
end of the drive, was built in 1835 to a design by James Hakewill. It is a single-storey ashlar building with a hexastyle Greek
Doric portico. West of the Hall are two other lodges. Mere Lodge (listed grade 1), a two-storey octagonal building of ashlar
and rendered brick, was designed in 1822 by Lewis Wyatt (1777-1853). Mereheath Lodge, 500m to the south on Mereheath
Lane, is an early or mid C19 brick and stucco building with an angled facade towards the drive. The main exit from Tatton
in the later C20 is south through the park via the 3km long Knutsford drive, down the west side of Tatton Mere. Knutsford
Lodge (listed grade |1*) at the south end of the drive, which incorporates a Doric triumphal arch, was added by Lewis Wyatt in
1811 following a suggestion by Humphry Repton and an initial sketch by Wyatt?s uncle Samuel Wyatt. The Knutsford drive
replaced that which ran up the Broad Walk, which was probably established in the early C18 when the Hall wasrebuilt. In 1787
Lady Mary?s Walk served as a drive approaching the Hall from the north.

PRINCIPAL BUILDING When John Egerton came to live at Tatton a new house, nearing completion in 1715, was built to
adesign of John Barker (d 1727). It stood on a low hill with views south-east across the park 1km west of the Old Hall. Its
cellar survives in the present house, as do parts of the additions made to that house ¢ 1760 by T F Pritchard (d 1777). As seen
today however Tatton Hall (listed grade ) - a two-storey ashlar house with a seven-bay south front, five-bay east side and
seven-bay colonnaded west wing - dates largely from the period after 1780 when Samuel Wyatt began to rebuild the house in
the neo-classical manner. The work came to a halt in 1791 but between 1806 and ¢ 1813 the main block was completed, on
areduced scale, by Samuel Wyatt's nephew Lewis Wyatt. In 1860 the second storey was added to the west, family wing by
Joseph Paxton?s son-in-law G H Stokes. Other additions were made in the 1880s.

North-west of the Hall, and north of the kitchen gardens, isthetall brick stable block (listed grade I1) designed in the late C18
by Samuel Wyatt.

Tatton Old Hall (listed grade I1*) lies adjacent to Tatton Brook. It is atimber-framed building of ¢ 1520 with later extensions
encased inbrick ¢ 1700. Adjoining the Old Hall isaC16 cruck barn (listed grade|1) moved hereinthelater C20 from Woodhouse
Farm, near Frodsham, Cheshire. Immediately north of the Old Hall are the earthworks of the deserted village of Tatton Green.
GARDENS AND PLEASURE GROUNDS Extending north-west for ¢ 300m from the new Hall's railed north forecourt is an
avenue, Lady Mary's Walk, present by 1750. This frames a vista from the house to Winter Hill on the horizon. East of the
Hall is a croquet lawn.

Themainformal garden (elementslisted gradel) lies below the grassterrace along the south front; aterraced Italianate Garden
it has a balustraded demi-lune at the end of the main north/south axial path, urns, and elaborate parterres. A square pool in the
lower terrace contains a statue of Triton. Although possibly designed in the later 1850s by Joseph Paxton (1803-65), the garden
was apparently not built until the early 1880s. The terracotta bal ustrades may have been manufactured in 1887 by the Ruabon
Terra Cotta Works. The garden was restored in 1986.

The pleasure grounds stretch south-east of the Italianate Garden for ¢ 200m, and comprise shrubberies and specimen trees with
walks as well as a number of discrete, named, individual gardens. In the shrubbery 30m south of the bottom of the Italianate
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Garden is the small Mercury Pool; a second small pool, the Leech Pool, lies 70m to the south-west. The Leech Pool has a
fountain. Some 20m north of the Leech Pool is a beech maze, already established by 1795.

Some 150m to the west of the Italianate Garden, to the south of the kitchen gardens, is alawn with shrubs. In the centreis Lady
Charlotte?s Fountain (listed grade I1) of ¢ 1860, and 150m to the south-west Lady Charlotte's Arbour, atreillage seat designed
by LewisWyaitt in 1814. These are the surviving elements of akidney-shaped flower garden designed in 1814 by Lewis Wyait,
possibly in association with John Webb (1854-1828). In 1818 Wyatt added the tall, seven-bay, sandstone Conservatory (listed
grade I1) on the north-east side of the garden. In 1859 thetall, red-brick, L-plan Fernery (listed grade 11*) was built immediately
to its north-west to a design by Joseph Paxton, possibly with G H Stokes. A small aviary originally lay between these two
buildings. Enclosing lawns to the immediate south and west of the Fernery, and north of Wyatt's garden of 1814, are the L-
Borders, flower beds divided by broad yew buttressesinto deep bays each with its own colour scheme.

To the south-west of the L-Borders, on the south side of the kitchen gardens, is the Rose Garden, aformal enclosed courtyard
with a pergola, statuary, a sunken plunge pool and, on its north side, a tea house. This garden was laid out ¢ 1913 for Lady
AnnaEgerton. To its south it connects with the Tower Garden, a compartment probably created in the 1930s using yew hedges
and brick walls around a crenellated two-storey tower of the mid C18, probably a park eyecatcher. A seat with a tiled roof
is built across one corner of the garden. Running past the east side of these two compartments is the north end of the Broad
Walk, a straight 150m long gravel path at the south end of which is a copy on a reduced scale of the Choragic Monument of
Lysicratesin Athens (listed grade I1), erected between 1830 and 1834 by William Cole to commemorate Wilbraham Egerton's
Grand Tour. South of the monument, and across the ha-ha which surrounds the pleasure grounds, the line of the Broad Walk
continues south through the park as the Beech Avenue. Within the gardens and midway down the east side of the Broad Walk
isthe African Hut, around thatched shelter, probably erected for the fourth Baron.

On the west side of the southern end of the Broad Walk is Golden Brooks Pit, an irregular ornamental pool ¢ 30m in diameter,
with arms to the north-west and south-west. This, originating as a pit for brick clay and present by 1750, was landscaped and
planted in the later C19. In 1910 the southern section was transformed into the Japanese Gardens by the third Baron Egerton,
who brought over Japanese workmen to undertake the design and layout. Structures include stone lanterns, bridges, a thatched
tea house, and an imported C19 Shinto shrine (listed grade I1). To the west of the Japanese Garden is a Pinetum or Arboretum,
probably devel oped from the early C19.

PARK Tatton Hall lies towards the western edge of an extensive park, some 5km from north to south and over 3km from east
to west. Most of the park remains as permanent pasture with many mature specimen trees, although a 500m wide strip down its
eastern side, east of the Tatton Brook, is divided into fields and farmed. Much of the perimeter is planted with woodland. The
earliest feature of the park's designed landscape is the Broad Walk or Beech Avenue which runs up the west side of the southern
half of the park. Originally of alternate beech and Scots pine thiswas perhaps planted in 1737. It was certainly present by 1740.
The main features of the southern half of the park are the two meres. Melchett Mere, and to its south the 1.6km long Tatton
Mere. Midway down the east bank of the latter is a sailing centre. The main area of open grassland in the park lies 1km east
of the Hall; this was the area used in the early 1940s as the drop zone by the Parachute Training School. To the north-east of
this is the fenced deer sanctuary. The park wall cuts off the northernmost 500m of the modern park, which was presumably
added to it at a later date. The park contains numerous ponds, mostly small. The largest, ¢ 150m in diameter, is the I ce Pond
300m north of the Hall.

The late C18 brick-built Home Farm complex lies ¢ 500m north of the Hall on the south side of Ashley Road. Several of the
buildings are listed grade 1. In the 1990s Home Farm housed a working farm museum.

Inthelater Middle Agesand early modern period therewas adeer park at Tatton north-east of the Old Hall. The Egertons began
to take land in hand in order to create a landscape park in the later 1740s, and the process continued through the 1750s and
1760s. In 1757 and 1759 Lancel ot Brown (1716-83) wasin correspondence with Samuel Egerton, although thereisno evidence
he worked on the park here. Similarly, although William Emes prepared a scheme in 1768 there is again no evidence anything
was done. Humphry Repton (1752-1818) visited Tatton in late 1791, and soon afterwards presented hisimprovement proposals
in a Red Book. His implemented proposals included replacing the drive up the Broad Walk with one from an architecturally
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emphasised lodge at the Knutsford entrance, and planting the tree screen to conceal the stables, kitchen garden and service
courtyard. He also recommended extending the two meres in the park and planting around them to give the impression of a
single sheet of water when viewed from the Hall. Turn Mere, nearer the Hall, was drained in 1816 under the direction of John
Webb, who in 1818 was credited with 'improvements' at Tatton (National Trust 1978, 39).The modern upper mere, dightly
south of the earlier one, formed in 1922 following subsidence caused by brine extraction and is continuing to grow. It was
named Melchett Mere by Lord Egerton after Lord Melchett, the chairman of the firm responsible. During the Second World
War Tatton park housed adispersal airfield and No 1 Parachute Training School. Among those trained were 10,000 SOE agents.
Structures of the 1939-45 period include low concrete bridge parapets on aircraft dispersal tracks and balloon mooring rings.
Licence to establish adeer park at Tatton was granted in 1290.

KITCHEN GARDEN Thewalled kitchen gardenslie west of the Hall, and occupy three compartments. The main walled garden
lies west of the Hall, and overall is ¢ 140m long from east to west and ¢ 70m wide at its west end, which is ¢ 20m wider than
the east end. The Fernery by Paxton is built along the inside of its south wall, with the Lewis Wyatt Conservatory outside the
garden to its east. Against the northern wall of that compartment is the C19 Head Gardener's Cottage, two C19 adjoining lean-
to glasshouses, and the bothy. There is evidence of other structures within this compartment, including an Orchid House by
Samuel Hemmer. Adjoining that garden to the west are two further compartments, overall ¢ 75m east/west by ¢ 120m north/
south. Here there are mid C19 pit houses and a range of fig houses or vinery.

In the 1750s there was a single long wall running west from the Hall with gardens to either side. It is believed (Thoday 1994)
that the gardens were developed into their present form ¢ 1818-19, at the time when Lewis Wyatt?s flower garden was under
construction to the south of the kitchen garden.
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Description written: September 1997 Register Inspector: PAS Edited: April 1999

Lega

This garden or other land is registered under the Historic Buildings and Ancient Monuments Act 1953 within the Register of
Historic Parks and Gardens by Historic England for its special historic interest.
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